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B.C.A.  PART- I English

Semester-I (Communication Skills)

LESSON NO. 2.1

Translation from M.I.L. into English

Dear Student,

By translation we mean to render the sentences of one language into another.

The effort obviously requires a thorough knowledge of the two concerned

languages.

To become a good translator, you have to acquire an intimate knowledge of

both these languages. You have to master vocabulary, grammar, idioms and

prevailing practices of usage in both the languages so as to grasp the meaning

of the given passage and then convey it with an equal force in the other

language. A good translation makes as smooth a reading as the original. The

total impression remains the same in both the cases. Thus you have to be

very careful while translating a given passage from one language into another.

Translation is an art. As in other arts, here also success depends on hard

work and constant practice. The following suggestions will help you in

cultivating art of translation:

1. Read the passage carefully and form a general impression of the ideas

contained in the passage. Words have more than one meaning and you

have to find out their meanings in the proper context.

2. You  need not follow the order of words and phrases as in the original.

Get the sense of the sentence and express it in simple English. Avoid

word for word translation and long drawn-out sentences.

3. But make sure you know the sense of idioms used in the given paragraph.

Avoid literal translation of these. Use the corresponding English word.

4. Avoid difficult words. Use only simple words which you understand

well.

5. Where the sentence is long, break it up into short sentences and then

translate. You may be able to manage a long sentence in your mother

tongue but may find it rather difficult in a foreign language.

6. Be careful about the sequence of tenses. Keep the form of narration of

the original. If the direct form is used, see that the necessary rules

are observed.

7. Do not use many words where a single word will do. Foreign terms and

unfamiliar words should be avoided.

1
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8. After translating the passage, read it over again and see that it is a

continuous piece.

9. The collective impression of the translated piece should be the same

as that of the original passage in Punjabi.

10. In short, your aim should be to use proper words, good idioms and

correct grammar.

Indian students find great difficulty in understanding the correct use of tenses

in English. Most of their mistakes in translation are due to the wrong use of

the English tenses. Some notes on tenses are, therefore, given below to

serve as an aid to your theory of what you have learnt in the previous year.

Some Notes on tenses

I. The present tense

(i) Present Indefinite or Simple Present :

The present indefinite tense is recognised in Punjabi by dk j?, dh j?, d/ jB.dk j?, dh j?, d/ jB.dk j?, dh j?, d/ jB.dk j?, dh j?, d/ jB.dk j?, dh j?, d/ jB.
It may be called the everyday tense, as it tells us something that happens

regularly.

e.g.: (i) The sun sets in the west.

(ii) She does not tell a lie.

(iii) Do we like sweets?

You should bear in mind the following rules :

In affirmative sentence (jK tkue)(jK tkue)(jK tkue)(jK tkue)(jK tkue)     either the first form of the verb is used or

's' or 'es' is added to the first form.

(a) If the subject is First Person (I, We). Second Person (You), or

Third Person Plural (They, boys), the first form of the verb is used, e.g.:

1. I keep my promise.

2. You speak the truth.

3. The boys play hockey.

(b) If the subject is Third Person Singlur (He, She, It, Ram,Train)

add 's'/ 'es' to the first form of the verb, e.g.:

1. He keeps his promise.

2. She brushes her teeth daily.

3. Ram goes to the temple.

4. It rains heavily.

For Negative (BKj tkue)(BKj tkue)(BKj tkue)(BKj tkue)(BKj tkue)     and Interrogative (gqFB tkue)(gqFB tkue)(gqFB tkue)(gqFB tkue)(gqFB tkue) sentences,  following

rules are observed :

(a) Helping verb 'do' or 'does' is used.
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(b) If subject is First Person, Second Person or Third Person Plural

use 'do', e.g.:

1. I do not tell a lie.

2. Do you pray daily?

3. The boys do not obey their elders.

(c) (I) If the subject is Third Person singular (he, she, it, Mohan,

Mother etc.) helping verb 'does' is used e.g.:

1. It does not rain.

2. Does he not know how to swim?

Notes :-1. 'Do' and 'does' always take the first form of the verb.

  2. In interrogative sentences, helping verbs 'do' and 'does'
come before the subject.

(ii) Present Continuous Tense :

The Present Continuous tense is the 'Now' tense. It indicates something

happening just at a moment; that is, a temporary occurrence. We recognise it

in Punjabi by fojk j?, ojh j?, oj/ jB,fojk j?, ojh j?, oj/ jB,fojk j?, ojh j?, oj/ jB,fojk j?, ojh j?, oj/ jB,fojk j?, ojh j?, oj/ jB,     and in English we use 'ing' with the

first form of the verb, along with a helping verb 'is' 'am' 'are', according to

the subject of the sentence, e.g.:

1. The kite is flying in the sky.

2. They are not helping the poor.

3. Am I failing in my duty?

Present Continuous is sometimes used for future events also, e.g.: He is

going to England next year. It means that this journey has already been

arranged and this arrangement stands at the present moment.

(iii) Present Perfect Tense :

The present perfect tense refers to an action or a state set wholly or partly

in the past. But the important thing is that this action or state is completed

in the present time or its effects continue in the present. We recognise it in

Punjabi by u[Zfenk j?, u[ZehnK jB, u[Ze/ jB.u[Zfenk j?, u[ZehnK jB, u[Ze/ jB.u[Zfenk j?, u[ZehnK jB, u[Ze/ jB.u[Zfenk j?, u[ZehnK jB, u[Ze/ jB.u[Zfenk j?, u[ZehnK jB, u[Ze/ jB.

It means the action has been completed. Helping verbs 'has' and 'have' are

used. After 'has' or 'have' the third form of the verb (past participle) is
used, e.g.:

1. Our team has won the match.

2. Have you beaten your brother?

3. She has not taken the test.
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(iv) Present Perfect Continuous Tense :

It indicates an action beginning indefinitely in the past but still continuing

at the present moment. We recognise it in Punjabi by fojk ;h, ojh ;h, oj/fojk ;h, ojh ;h, oj/fojk ;h, ojh ;h, oj/fojk ;h, ojh ;h, oj/fojk ;h, ojh ;h, oj/

;B,;B,;B,;B,;B, alongwith an indication of the time when the action began.

Important : Please do not confuse it with the Present Continuous. The

difference is that in Present Continuous an action is simply going on, whereas

in the Perfect Continuous tense time factor is also indicated, e.g.:

1H pZuk o' fojk j?. (Present Continuous)

2H pZuk fJe xzN/ s'I o' fojk j?. (Present Perfect Continuous)

These are to be translated as follows :

1. The child is crying.

2. The child has been crying for an hour.

Please observe the following rules in the case of Present Perfect Continuous

Tense :

(i) Use helping verb 'has been' or 'have been'.

(ii) Add 'ing' to the first form of the verb, (that is Present Participle

form of the verb).

(iii) Use 'since' or 'for' before the time.

Note :- (a) since is used to denote the point of time, e.g.: 3 p.m. 4 O'

clock, Monday, March, 1908, morning, evening etc., e.g.: It has been raining

since 3 p.m.

(b) for is used to denote a period of time e.g.: ten minutes, an

hour, three days, two minutes, five years, etc.

I have been studying in this college for four years.

II. The past tense

(i) Past Indefinite or Simple Past :

The Past Indefinite tense indicates an action which happened in the past,

and is recognised in Punjabi by nk, Jh, sh, sknk, Jh, sh, sknk, Jh, sh, sknk, Jh, sh, sknk, Jh, sh, sk etc., e.g.: T[j ;e{b s'I w[V nkfJnk.

T[; B/ xVh r[nk fdZsh.

The following rules are observed in this tense :

(i) In affirmative sentence, second form of the verb is used :

1. He went to school yesterday.

2. They took their meals.

3. Anita promised to help me.



B.C.A. Part-I (Semester-I)  English (Communication Skills)5

(ii) In negative and interrogative sentences, helping verb 'did' is

used with the first form of the verb, e.g.:

1. He did not help me.

2. Did they not go to see the picture yesterday ?

(ii) Past Continuous Tense :

The Past Continuous tense indicates an action which went on happening in the

past and is recognised in Punjabi by fojk ;h, oj/ ;B, ojh ;h.fojk ;h, oj/ ;B, ojh ;h.fojk ;h, oj/ ;B, ojh ;h.fojk ;h, oj/ ;B, ojh ;h.fojk ;h, oj/ ;B, ojh ;h.

You should bear in mind the following rules:

(i) Helping verbs 'was' and 'were' are used in these tenses: 'was' is

used with a singular subject and 'were' with plural subject.

(ii) Use 'ing' with the first form of the verb after 'was' or 'were' as

explained below. Please study the following examples:

1. He was suffering from fever.

2. They were taking their meals.

3. Were they doing their job sincerely?

4. Sita was not singing a song.

When the time of past action is defined in relation to another action, the one

that is kind of background to the other, is put in the Past Continuous tense

e.g.: "When he came, they were having dinner."

You may find it surprising that the Past Continuous tense can refer to the

future also in the sentence: "We were having guests tonight but they are

rather late." "were having" indicates a past intention or expectation now

unlikely to be fulfilled.

(iii) Past Perfect Tense :

The Past Perfect tense indicates the completion of work in the past and is

recognised in Punjabi by u[fenk ;h, u[eh ;h, u[e/ ;B, frnk ;h, rJh ;h, rJ/ ;B.u[fenk ;h, u[eh ;h, u[e/ ;B, frnk ;h, rJh ;h, rJ/ ;B.u[fenk ;h, u[eh ;h, u[e/ ;B, frnk ;h, rJh ;h, rJ/ ;B.u[fenk ;h, u[eh ;h, u[e/ ;B, frnk ;h, rJh ;h, rJ/ ;B.u[fenk ;h, u[eh ;h, u[e/ ;B, frnk ;h, rJh ;h, rJ/ ;B.

The following rules are observed in this tense:

(i) Helping verb 'had' is used with the third form (past participle)

of the verb.

1. He had already gone to Shimla.

2. They had not finished their work yet.

(ii) When we speak of two past events one happening before the

other, the sentence becomes complex. The event which happened first and

before the other is put in the Past Perfect tense and the other in the Past

Indefinite tense. The sentence: "The patient had died before the doctor came"

carries two past events-the event, "The patient had died" happened first, so it

has been put in the Past Perfect tense. In the Punjabi sentences there may
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not be any clear cut distinction but you should read the sentence carefully

and see which event happened before the other.

(iv) Past Perfect Continuous Tense :

The Past Perfect Continuous tense is used to indicate an action that had

been going on in the past for some time and is recognised in Punjabi by fojkfojkfojkfojkfojk

;h, ojh ;h, oj/ ;B.;h, ojh ;h, oj/ ;B.;h, ojh ;h, oj/ ;B.;h, ojh ;h, oj/ ;B.;h, ojh ;h, oj/ ;B. But you should not confuse it with Past Continuous

because it always carries the time factor. Please study the following examples

carefully :

1H pZuk o' fojk ;h. (Past Continuous)

2H pZuk d' xzN/ s'I o' fojk ;h. (Past Perfect Continuous)

They are to be translated as:

1. The child was crying.

2. The child had been crying for two hours.

Please note that in the Past Perfect Continuous tense helping verb

'had been' is used and 'ing' is added to the first form of the verb e.g.:

1. It had been raining since morning.

2. Had they not been working hard for last two months?

iii.  The future tense

(i) Future Indefinite or Simple Future :

It denotes simple futurity of an action or state. In Punjabi, we recognise

it by rk, r/, rh,rk, r/, rh,rk, r/, rh,rk, r/, rh,rk, r/, rh, Helping verb 'will' or 'shall' followed by the first form of the

verb is used in Simple Future tense:

1. I shall win the scholarship.

2. Will you keep your word?

3. They will not help me.

Generally 'shall' is used with the First Person (I, We) and 'will' with the

Second and Third Persons. But if the sentence denotes desire, determination,

order, threat, will or promise, 'shall' is used with the Second and Third Person

and 'will' comes with the First Person.

If there is a complex sentence in Future Indefinite, e.g.:

i/ s[;hI fwjBs eo'r/ sK ;cb j' ikt'r/.

then Future Indefinite is used in the Principal Clause and Present

Indefinite is used in the Subordinate Clause, e.g.:

If you work hard (Present Indefinite) you will get through (Future

Indefinite).

This is the sequence of Present Indefinite and Future Indefinite tense.
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(ii) Future Continuous Tense :

It is used to express an action that will continue at a certain time in future.

We recognise it in Punjabi by fojk j't/rk, ojh j't/rh, oj/ j'Dr/.fojk j't/rk, ojh j't/rh, oj/ j'Dr/.fojk j't/rk, ojh j't/rh, oj/ j'Dr/.fojk j't/rk, ojh j't/rh, oj/ j'Dr/.fojk j't/rk, ojh j't/rh, oj/ j'Dr/.

Helping verb 'will be' and 'shall be' are used followed by the present participle

('ing') added to the first form of the verb:

1. I shall be writing my lesson.

2. Will Chand be waiting for us?

3. He will not be doing this work.

(iii) Future Perfect Tense :

It tells us that a certain action will be completed by a certain time in Future.

We recognise it in Punjabi by u[fenk j't/rk, u[eh j't/rh, u[e/ j'Dr/.u[fenk j't/rk, u[eh j't/rh, u[e/ j'Dr/.u[fenk j't/rk, u[eh j't/rh, u[e/ j'Dr/.u[fenk j't/rk, u[eh j't/rh, u[e/ j'Dr/.u[fenk j't/rk, u[eh j't/rh, u[e/ j'Dr/. We use

helping verbs 'will have' and 'shall have' followed by the past participle (i.e.,

the third form of the verb): e.g.: I shall have written the letter before you

came.

When two actions take place in future, one after the other we use Future

Perfect tense for the first action and Present Indefinite for the second
e.g.:

1. I shall have reached Patiala before it rains.

2. The postman will have left before I reach the post office.

(iv) Future Perfect Continuous Tense :

It expresses an action that will have been going on or before some point of

time in future.

In Punjabi Future Perfect Continuous tense is recognised by the following

structure : Verb + fdnK + time factor + j' frnk$rJ/$u[ehnK$u[e/$j't/rk$j'Dr/.

e.g.: 1H fJwfsjkB ftu p?mD s'I gfjbK T[; ~ ezw eofdnK uko wjhB/ j' rJ/$u[e/ j'Dr/.

2H 1999 sZe fJ; dcso ftu ezw eofdnK w?~ S/ ;kb j' u[e/ j'Dr/.

These sentences will be translated as follows :

1. He will have been working for four months before he takes the

examination.

2. By 1999, I shall have been working in that office for six years.

Tense Patterns :

1. When the main verb is in past tense, the subordinate verb is also put

in the past tense, e.g.: He knew the road was under water. Avoid the following

common mistakes in the sentences like this : w?I vkeNo ~ g[fSnk j[D T[j eh eo/rk. The

correct translation would be : I asked the doctor what he would do next.
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Caution :

In the above sentence do not add the word 'that' as a conjunction after the

word 'doctor'. The other common mistake is using the word-order which belongs

to the direct questions, i.e. What would he do? In direct question the word

order is changed as What he would do, and there is never any question mark.

Conditional Sentences :

Words like @i/#@i/#@i/#@i/#@i/# translated as 'if ' denote conditions i/ Gkosh Nhw jko rJh sK ;k~

pVh fBokFk j't/rh. It can be translated as : If the Indian team lost we would be

greatly disappointed.

'Lost' implies doubt, it means the chances of losing are not much. The same

sentence may be translated as 'If the Indian team loses, we will be greatly

disappointed.' This translation in English would imply that the chances of the

Indian team losing the match are more than ever.

Another type of conditional sentence is:

I would have become a doctor, if I had been good at studies.

Here I am thinking entirely of the past and of something which did not happen.

Here we use 'would have' and 'had'.

Remember, 'If clause' is never used in the future. You cannot say : 'If the

Indian team will lose' or 'If I would become a doctor'.

Gerunds :

In translation a sentence like  w?I s[jkvk fJj ezw eoBk g;zd BjhI eodk.w?I s[jkvk fJj ezw eoBk g;zd BjhI eodk.w?I s[jkvk fJj ezw eoBk g;zd BjhI eodk.w?I s[jkvk fJj ezw eoBk g;zd BjhI eodk.w?I s[jkvk fJj ezw eoBk g;zd BjhI eodk. We

normally say, "I do not like your doing this work." This is the standard

grammatical form. But in speech we may say, 'I do not like you doing this

work.' We use the ordinary pronoun 'you' instead of the possessive 'your'.

Direct Speech :

The words spoken by someone are put in inverted commas. Remember the

following things if you are translating a paragraph of this type. Put a comma

after  He said, There is no 'that' after 'said' in the Direct Speech. 'He said

that', introduces Indirect Speech, never Direct Speech. The first word of the

Direct Speech begins with a capital letter. This is because the speech is

always regarded as a separate sentence. The quotation marks open and close

at the beginining and the end of the actual words spoken. Howsoever long the

speech may be, there is only one set of commas. But if there is a speech

within speech single inverted commas may be used for the 'inner' speech. Do

not change the tense of the original speech.

Model Examples

Study the following model examples carefully as illustrations of the rules

regarding translation :
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Example 1

Our past is glorious. The credit for this goes to many soldiers, scholars,

artists and literary geniuses. But the glory of the past should not blind us. It

is said that those who are lost in the glories of the past do not have a future.

We, living in the present age, can do much for the future and can make the

present great by taking a cue from the past so that the coming generations

can also claim that they too have a glorious past.

;kvk nshs wjkB j?. fJ; nshs ~ wjkB pBkD dk f;jok pj[s :'fXnK ftdtkBK, ebkekoK

ns/ ;kfjsekoK d/ f;o j?. go nshs dh wjkBsk fes/ ;k~ nzBQk Bk pDk d/t/. fejk iKdk j?

fe i' nshs dhnK :kdK ftu v[p/ ofjzd/ jB T[BQK dk GftZy BjhI j[zdk. n;hI i/ nZi d[BhnK

ftu ofjzd/ jK nshs ~ t/yd/ j'J/ GftZy bJh pj[s e[M eo ;ed/ jK s/ toswkB ~ pDk ;ed/

jK sK fe nkT[D tkbhnK ghVQhnK th efj ;eD fe nshs wjkB j?.

Example 2

Some people waste others' time by indulging in idle gossip. Once they get an

opportunity to start talking, then God only may help. Who can spare time

these days to listen to others' problems? Every human being, for some reason

or the other, is physically or mentally sick. Everybody is unhappy over one

thing or the other. It is, therefore, not gentlemanly to go on narrating your

own sorrows to those who are unresponsive. Gentlemen do not waste the

time of others unnecessarily.

eJh ftnesh ckbs{ rZbK eoe/ d{finK dk ;wK popkd eod/ jB. T[BQK ~ rZb F[o{ eoB dk

w"ek fwb ikt/ sK fco T[BQK e'b'I oZp jh pyF/. nZi fe; e'b ckbs{ ;wK j? d{finK d/ d[Zy ;[DB

dk< jo ftnesh fe;/ Bk fe;/ ekoB ;ohoe iK wkBf;e s"o s/ o'rh j?. jo e'Jh fe;/ Bk fe;/

rZb s'I d[yh j?, n?t/I fe;/ ~ nkgDk d[Zy ;[DkJh ikDk nr'I Gkt/I e'Jh j[zrkok Go/ iK Bk ;kT{g[DK

BjhI. ;kT{ g[oF fe;/ dk ;wK ckbs{ BFN BjhI eod/.

Example 3

So the wise men of all nations have assembled together to deliberate if they

can find a way of doing away with war altogether. The first imperative for this

is co-operation among all nations. Co-operation is a big world but it simply

means working together. If nations can learn to work together as friends

they will soon find a way of settling their disputes amicably, instead of being

jealous and suspicious of one another, and being proud of their rights, they

must learn to be friendly and reasonable and should be eager to help each

other.

fJ; bJh ;ko/ okFNoK d/ p[ZXhwkB wB[Zy fJj ftuko eoB bJh fJeZm/ j'J/ jB, fe T[j :[ZX s'I

fJedw S[Nekok gkT[D dk e'Jh jZb eZY ;ed/ jB. fJ; bJh ;G s'I }o{oh uh} j? ;kohnK e"wK

ftu ;fj:'r. ;fj:'r fJe tZvk Fpd j?, go fJ; dk nkw noE j? fwb e/ ezw eoBk. i/ okFNo
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fwZsoK tKr fwb e/ ezw eoBk f;Zy ikD, sK ibdh jh T[j nkgD/ MrV/ fwZsosk Bkb fBgNk

b?Dr/. fJe d{i/ Bkb Jhoyk ns/ FZe d/ Gkt oZyD/ ns/ nkgD/ nfXeko gqsh x[wzv dh EK T[BQK

~ fJe d{i/ Bkb fwZso Gkt Bkb ofjD ns/ mhe Yzr Bkb ftjko eoB ;zpzXh f;Zfynk gqkgs

eoBh ukjhdh j? ns/ go;go ;jkfJsk tk;s/ sZsgo ofjDk ukjhdk j?.

Example 4

The Government of India is not based on any religious concept. It is a secular

state where everyone is free to worship his God in the manner he wants. The

Government of India wishes neither to declare a particular religion as a state

religion nor to destroy any other. Built on this foundation, India after a century,

will create such an impact that nobody will have time to think that one of

their neighbouring countries advocates one particular religion while another

advocates a different religion. People will consider interference with the

religion of others a moral degradation.

Gkos ;oeko fe;/ Xkofwe fBFu/ T[s/ BjhI pDh, fJj fJe ;?e{bo ;N/N j?, fiE/ jo tk;h ~

g{oB y[bQ j?, fi; soQK T[j ukj/ nkgDk fJFN fXnkt/. Bk jh Gkos ;oeko fe;/ Xow ~ oki

Xow pBkDk ukj[zdh j? s/ Bk jh fe;/ d{;o/ ~ wbhnk w/N eoBk b'Vdh j?. nfijh BhIj T[s/

T[;fonk Gkos fJe ;dh fgS'I nkgDk n;o fdykt/rk id'I b'eK ~ fJj ;'uD dk ;wK jh BjhI

j't/rk, fe ;kv/ cbkD/ r[nKYh dk fJj Xow j?, d{;ok T[; ~ wzBdk j?. b'e d{i/ Xkofwe ftukoK

ftu dyb d/D ~ fJybkeh froktN ;wMDr/.

Example 5

Picturesquely situated around a beautiful lake at an altitude of 6300 feet

from the sea level, Nanital is a famous hill resort of India. It is a centre of

attraction for thousands of devout lovers of nature. This limpid beauty of the

rippling waters of the lake presents a fascinating view. It appears as if the

golden rays of the sun are engaged in playing hide and seek at the lake. The

reflections of the dancing flowers in water present a pageant of beauty.

;w[zdo s'I 6300 c[ZN dh T[ukJh T[s/ owDhe ns/ wB'jo BikfonK Bkb Gog{o Mhb d/ d[nkb/ ;fEs,

B?Bhskb Gkos dk fJe wFj{o gjkVh ;EkB j?. fJj e[dos ~ ;Zu/ fdb'I fgnko eoB tkb/ j}koK

ftneshnK bJh fyZu dk e/Ido j?. Mhb d/ fjb'oK wkod/ gkDh dk ;kc ;"Ido: fJe nfs fdbeF

Bikok j?. fJzi gqshs j[zdk j?, fit/I ;{oi dhnK ;'B ozrhnK feoBK fJE/ b[eD-whNh y/v ojhnK

j'D. gkDh ftu M{wd/ c[ZbK d/ neF ;[zdosk dh Mkeh g/F eod/ jB.



B.C.A.  PART- I ENGLISH

SEMESTER-I (COMMUNICATION SKILLS)

LESSON NO. 2.2

More About Translation from M.I.L. into English
The tenses have, however, been explained in the previous lesson in their 'pure' form.

As a matter of fact, tenses, in addition to the 'pure form, have also a 'coloured' one or

epecially when they are influenced by desires, intentions, promise, threats, etc.

Human beings are by nature often subjected to such influences. They convey these

sentiments. Therefore, you have to use the tenses not only in the 'pure' form but also

in their coloured forms.

I. Coloured Present :

(i) 'Do' and 'does' are used in affirmative sentences for imparting emphasis

and definiteness to the tone. 'Does' is used when the subject in the sentence

is either singular pronoun in third person (he or she) or a noun in the

singular form. 'Do' is used when the subject is I, we, they, you or a noun

in the plural form.

         For example :

T[j T[E/ }o{o iKdk j?.  He does go there.

(ii) For expressing compulsion 'have' and 'has' are made use of as under :

(iii)    Causative verbs 'make' and 'get' are used when the intention is to express

the mode through which the action takes place. 'Get' is used in the neutral

sense and 'make' in the qualitative sense, i.e. when it is accompanied by

request, order etc. In this context it is necessary for you to grasp how 'get'

and 'make' have been used in the following sentenses:

T[j ;[oihs e'b'I g[;seK fbytKdk j?. He gets books written by Surjit.

II. Coloured Past :

(i) 'Did' is used in affirmative sentences when emphatic and definite

statements are to be made, for example :

However, when the emotional tone is different, 'did' may be used in the

11

The teacher makes the student sit

on the ground.

Please make him understand this

question.

nfXnkge ftfdnkoEh ~ G[zi/ fpmkT[Idk j?.

feogk eoe/ T[;~ fJj ;tkb ;wMk

d/t'.

I have to work hard.w?~ ;ys ezw eoBk g?Idk j?.
T[; ~ o'i d"VBk g?Idk j?. He has to run daily.

You do smoke.s[;hI }o{o f;roN ghId/ j'.

He did go there.T[j T[E/ }o{o frnk.
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following manner :

(ii) 'Had' is used alongwith the verb when the subject has to work under

compulsion.

okw ~ fdZbh ikDk fgnk.  Ram had to go to Delhi.

When the sentence becomes interrogative, the form changes :

eh T[; ~ fdZbh ikDk fgnk <  Did he have to go to Delhi?

(iii) 'Got' and 'make' are used in the causative manner in the past tense :

T[; B/ okw s'I ezw eotkfJnk. He got the work done from Ram.

III. Coloured Future :

(i)   To denote futurity 'shall' is used with I and we, 'will' is used with you, they,

he, she, and nouns in the singular and plural form. However, 'will' takes

the place of 'shall' when the first person is to show determination,

willingness, promise or threat. For example :

w/ok fejk }o{o wzfBnk ikt/rk. I will be obeyed.

w?I s[jkvh }o{o ;jkfJsk eoKrk.I will help you.

i/ s[;hI mhe soQK BjhI ub'r/ sK

w?I s[jk~ ;}k d/tKrk.

     Similarly 'shall' takes the place of 'will' when the second person or the

third person is to denote obligation, promise, threat, refusal, command

and prohibition.

   s[;hI fJE'I bzx BjhI ;e'r/.   You shall not pass from here.

(ii)  When something shows intention and probability to happen in the future

it is denoted by the use of 'going to' with the infinitive rather than by 'will'

and 'shall'.

(iii) When something is going to happen in the near future, it is denoted by

the Present Continuous rather than by 'will' and 'shall'.

T[;skd B/ ftfdnkoEh ~ p?Iu s/
yVk ehsk.

The teacher made the student stand on

the bench.

I will punish you if you don't  behave

yourself.

s[jk~ ;hsk Bkb ftnkj eokT[Dk

gt/rk.
You shall have to marry Sita.

s[jk~ o[fgnk ntZF jh nrb/ jcs/

fwb ikt/rk.

You shall get the money next week.

Thou shall not steel.s[jkv/ bJh u'oh eoBk ntfrnk
j't/rh.

T[BQK dk wkou ftu ftnkj j' fojk

j?.
They are going to be married in March.

w? I ikD ~ ufbnk frnk go

gSskfJnk pj[s.
I did go, but repented very much.

 T[j eZbQ gj[zu ikt/rk. He is arriving tommorow.
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(iv)  When the future indicates what usually happens everyday, it is denoted

by Future Continuous rather than simply by 'will' and 'shall'.

(v)    When something is settled as part of programme or agreement, it is denoted

by the Simple Present rather than by 'will' and 'shall'.

(vi)   'Will' and 'shall' are replaced by 'want', 'intend', 'choose', and 'mean' if the

meaning is to be expressed more strongly with resolve and volition.

(vii)  When the incident is going to happen by the specified future, it is shown

by the use of Future Perfect reather than by the use of simple 'will' and

'shall'.

IV. Use of 'would' and 'should' :

(i)    In addition to being the past of 'will' and 'shall', "would" has specific

contexts for its use. It is used to denote imaginative willingness,

conditional willingness, habitual occurrence, wishfulness and probable

expectation.

     I am busy or I would have gone myself.

     She would hang on him.

  I wish he would hurry up.

(ii) 'Should' is used to denote what ought to happen, what is desirable to

happen, what is uncertain, what is surprising and what is fearful to

encounter.

    You should help him.

Will you be seeing him tommorrow?eh (o'} tKr) s[;hI T[;~ eZbQ th
fwb'r/ <

T[; dhnK S[ ZNhnK eZbQ nkozG

j'DrhnK.
His vacation starts tommorrow.

w?I T[jBK ~ nrb/ jcs/ }o{o
fwbKrk.

w?I o[Mk j'fJnk jK, BjhI sK nkg

jh ubk iKdk.
i/ n;hI fe;/ okFNo ~ ;wMDk j?
sK ;k~ T[; dh GkFk }o{o f;yDh

ukjhdh j?.

If we would understand a nation, we

must learn its language.

T[j T[; s/ bZN{ j'Jh ofjzdh ;h.

w?I ukj[zdk jK fe T[j ibdh eodk.

s[jk~ T[; dh ;jkfJsk eoBh ukjhdh

j?.

nrb/ ;szpo se ;kvk ftnkj j'J/
;Zs ;kb j' ikDr/.

By next September we shall have been

married for seven years.

She suggested that we should

start early.

T[; B/ ;[Mkn fdZsk fe ;k~ ibdh s[o
g?Dk ukjhdk j?.

I mean to do it.w?I fJj }o{o eoKrk.

I intend to see them next week.

pj[s b'e fJt/I jh efjzd/ jB. That is what most people would say.
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s[jk~ fJ; wkwb/ ftu w/oh ;bkj b?Dh
ukjhdh j?.

rKXh ih B/ nj{sh d/ fdZsh sK i' d/F
ihts oj/.

The Principal can expel you from

the college.

fgqz;hgb s[jk~ ekbi ftu'I eZY ;edk j?.

How terrible it would be if a time

should come when I could not love

her.

T[; ;w/I dk nkT[Dk, id'I w?I T[; ~ fgnko
BjhI eo ;eKrk, vokT[Dh rZb j't/rh.

eh s[;hI dZ; ;e'r/ fe s[jkvh xVh s/ fezB/ ti/
jB<

Could you tell me the time by your

watch?

Why should you be surprised?s[;hI j?okB feT[I j'Jh iKd/ j'<

I hid behind a tree lest somebody

should see me.

w?I doys fgS/ b[e frnk sK fe n?;k Bk

j't/ fe w?~ e'Jh d/y bt/.

May I Come in?

He works hard so that he may pass.

Note :- 'Lest' is always followed by 'should'.

V. Use of 'may and might':

(i)   'May' is used to express possibility (rather than probability) permission

purpose and blessing.

 He may pass the examination.

(ii)   'Might' is the past tense of 'may' and is used as such. However, it refers to

the present and future as well; and when used in this way it denotes

suggestion, request, wish, possibility and purpose.

              You might consult me in this

  matter.

   s[;hI w/ok pkjo fJzs}ko eo'.  You might wait for me outside.

      T[j FkfJd eZbQ tkg; nk ikt/.  He might return tomorrow.

VI. Use of 'can' and 'could' :

(i) 'Can' is used to denote power, authority, capacity, ability, permission.

w?I tkd-fttkd ftu T[; ~ jok ;edk jK.  I can defeat him in debate.

w?I s?o e/ dfonk gko eo ;edk jK.  I can swim across the river.

T[j fJj ;wZf;nk jZb eo ;edk j?.  He can solve this problem.

s[;hI f;B/wk d/yD ik ;ed/ j'.  You can go to see the movie.

(ii) 'Could' is past tense of 'can' and is mostly used as such. Sometime,

however, it is used in the present as well. Then it denotes a polite request

that is normally expected to be acceded to

j' ;edk j? fe T[j fJwfsjkB ftu'I gk;

j' ikt/.

eh w?~ nzdo nkT[D dh nkfrnk j?<

T[j ;]s fwjBs eodk j? sK i' T[j
gk; j' ikt/.
Fkbk ! s[jkvh nk:{ bzwh j't/. May you live long !

Gandhiji sacrificed himself so

that the country might live.
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VII. Use of 'ought to' and 'dare' :

(i) 'Ought to' is used to express moral obligation and strong probability.

(ii) 'Dare' denotes moral courage and sense of challenge.

Here it is very necessary to note that 'dare' is followed by 'to' only in affirmative

sentences. In negative sentence 'to' is invariably dropped.

 He dare not disobey me.

In negative sentence the verb remains 'dare' even though the subject may be

third person singular, as in the example given above.

VIII. Direct and indirect forms of narration :

In the English language, there are two forms of narration, the direct form and

the indirect form. In the direct form of narration the actual words of the speaker are

reproduced while in the indirect form of narration only the meaning of speaker's

statement is conveyed.

For example :

"Ram says, "I shall go to Delhi", is a sentence in the direct form, and Ram says

that he will go to Delhi, is in the indirect form.

The change of a sentence from the direct form, especially with the reporting

verb in the past tense, changes its tense, pronouns and the form of the sentence

along with some other minor changes. For example :

The girl said to her teacher, "My mother has given me a rupee", is changed

into The girl told her teacher that her mother had given her a rupee.

In the Punjabi language, the direct and indirect forms of narration are not as

distinct as they are in English. For example, in sentence like :

bVeh B/ nkgD/ fgsk ~ g[ZfSnk fe s[;hI d/o Bkb feT[I nkJ/ j'<

The direct and indirect forms are mixed up.

You cannot translate it into English as:

The girls asked her father that why are you late? (Indirect)

You have to put it either in the direct form :

The girl said to her father, "Why are you late" or you may translate it in the

indirect form :

The girl asked her father why he was late.

okw B/ T[; ~ nZr/ nkT[D dh fusktBh

fdZsh.

T[; ftu w/ok efjDk Bk wzBD dk ;kj;

BjhI.

Every body ought to respect the

elders.

jo fJZe ~ tZfvnK dk ;fseko eoBk
ukjhdk j?.

He ought to win the match.

T[; ftu ;Zs fdB se G[Zy/ ofjD dk ;kj;
;h.

He dared to starve for seven days.

T[; ~ w?u fiZs ikDk ukjhdk j?.

Ram dared him to come forward.
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While translating from Punjabi into English, sentences in the direct form of

narration should be rendered, preferably in the direct form and those in the indirect

form should be rendered in the indirect form. If the passage is in a conversational

style, its direct form should be retained. While doing so every effort should be made

to keep the idiomatic character of English intact. Sentences not involving

conversation may, however, be translated in the same form.

For example, a dialogue like the following:

okw L w'jB, fdZbh ed'I ik oj/ j'<

w'jB L FkfJd eZbQ iktK.

should be translated as :

Ram said to Mohan, "When are you going to Delhi?"

Mohan replied, "I may go tommorrow."

But the following sentence :

T[;skd B/ w[zfvnK ~ fejk fe i/ s[;hI ;pe :kd Bk eoe/ nkJ/ sK ;}k fwb/rh.

May be translated as :

The teacher warned the boys that they would be punished if they did not

prepare the lesson.

IX. Active and Passive Voice :

Sentences in English may be written in the Active Voice or in the Passive

Voice. If the doer is the centre of interest, he is made the subject of the sentence, and

the verb is put in the Active form. If the thing done occupies a central place, it is

naturally made the subject and correspondingly the verb is used in the Passive form.

The Passive form may be chosen for one of the following reasons :

(i) The active subject is unknown and cannot be located. For example :

Her husband was shot dead last year.

(ii) More interest is created by the Passive rather than the Active subject e.g.:

The building was damaged by fire.

(iii) The Active subject is obvious from the context:

He was chosen to represent his country in the Olympic Games.

(iv) The Active subject may not be mentioned for some obvious reason.

Very often a sentence in the Active has two objects, a direct and an

indirect one.

He told the boy a story.

In such a sentence the indirect object is nearly always preferred as the subject

of the Passive form.

Thus in the passive it becomes :

The boy was told a story.

In Punjabi, the Active form of sentence-construction is as much in vogue as

the Passive form. While translating a sentence from Punjabi into English, effort should
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be made to do it in the same way in which it is in the original. The effort should not,

however, be exerted at the cost of the correct idiom of the English language. For

example, the following sentence :

T[; ~ d/yd/ jh w/o/ s's/ T[v rJ/.

as available in Punjabi is in the Active form. Its translation into English in Active form can

only be literal and clumsy. For translating it properly and idiomatically, its voice has to be

changed into the Passive. Translated as under, it seems quite idiomatic and proper :

I was nonplussed to see him.

Now it conveys fully the meaning of the sentence in Punjabi. It is lucid, effective and

has the freshness and originality expected of it in English.

X. Conjunctions :

A conjunction is a word that joins words or phrases or sentences together.

This joining together has to be done because otherwise the sentences become

monotonous. For example, the following sentences :

T[; B/ o'Nh th Bk ykXh. T[; B/ gkDh th Bk ghsk. have to be joined with a

conjunction and presented as : He neither took food nor drank water.

Conjunctions are as much required in Punjabi as in English. They are used

chiefly for the following purposes :

(i) To express addition : (and ns/)

T[j ns/ T[jdk Gok d'B'I B/e jB. Both he and his brother are noble.

(ii) To express opposition : (but, go iK gozs{)

(iii) To express choice : (either/or iK)

s[;hI nk ikT[ iK T[j nk ikJ/. Either you or he may come.

Its negative alternative is neither (not; Bk)

Bk s[;hI nkd/ Bk T[j nkJ/. Neither you nor he came.

(iv) To express condition : If, whether, provided, supposing, etc.

i/ s[;hI nkT[Dk ukj' sK s[jkvk I shall wait for you, if you

fJzsiko eoKrk. choose to come.

(v) To express inference : (so, therefore, so that fJ; bJh sK i')

(vi) To explain : (thus, because, fJ;/ soQK, fJ;/ bJh, feT[Ife)

I sent a massage to him but he

was not at home.

w?I T[; ~ ;[B/jk G/fink, go T[j xo

BjhI ;h.

w?I T[; ~ g[fSnk eh w?I T[; dh wdd

eoK.
I asked him whether I might

help him.

pZdb fJeZm/ j' oj/ jB fJ; bJh
FkfJd whIj gt/.

feT[Ife T[j phwko j?,fJ; bJh BjhI nk
;edk.

He cannot come because he is ill.

Clouds are gathering, therefore,

it may rain.
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XI. Syntax :

Syntax is the word-order that is observed in the formation of a sentence.

Every language has its own word-order. In order to translate sentences or passage

from Punjabi into English one must be fully acquainted with the word-order of

both the languages. In this context the following factors need be understood

thoroughly:

(i) The normal word-order in English for a simple, assertive sentence is :

Subject-verb-Object

In Punjabi it is differnt :

Subject-Object-verb

For example, the English sentence ;

He beat me:

When translated into Punjabi, becomes:

T[; B/ w?~ wkfonk.

It is, therefore, important for the students to remember that a word for

word translation would not be correct.

The word order has also to be changed in case of interrogative or

exclamatory sentences.

XII. Some Tips :

The translation of a Passage of Punjabi into English will end up badly if

you use :

(a) Obsolete words i.e., those words, which are no longer in use now:

shalt, wilt, etc.

(b) Slang and colloquialisms i.e., words which are used only in

conversation but have not yet acquired literary status : O.K., Yea.

(c) Foreign words i.e. words belonging to languages other than English.

(d) Elliptical forms, i.e. forms in which words are fewer than required,

e.g., will do (in place of 'This will do')

Translation will surely end up well if the following factors are kept in

mind :

(a) Brevity i.e. words are neither fewer nor more than the required

number.

(b) Simplicity i.e. words are not high-sounding and bombastic.

(c) Directness i.e. words are forceful.

(d) Concretences i.e. the sense of the sentence is significantly expressed

through the correct choice of words.
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Model Examples (Translation from English into Punjabi) :

I did go, but repented very much. Had I known that I would be insulted

there I would not have gone at all. After everything had happened, I realised

that I should not have gone there. This was such a blunder on my part as I

would not forget all my life. All my companions forbade me to go there but

I persisted in doing so. The result of this persistence is the repentance

that may haunt me all my life. But now it is of no avail. The proverb says :

It is no use crying over spilt milk.

(i) ikD ~ sK w?I ubk frnk go gSskfJnk pj[s. i/ w?~ gsk j[zdk fe w/ok

ngwkB j't/rk sK w?I ed/ th Bk iKdk. ;G e[M j' u[eD s'I wro'I w?~ ;wM nkJh

fe w?~ T[E/ BjhI ;h ikDk ukjhdk. fJj w/o/ e'b'I j'Jh fJe nfijh G[Zb ;h fi; ~

w?I ihtB Go BjhI G[Zb ;eKrk. w/o/ ;ko/ ;kEh w?~ T[E/ ikD s'I toid/ oj/ go w?I

T[E/ ikD s/ jm eodk fojk. jm dk Bshik fJj j?, gFukskg, i' w?~ j' ;edk

j? ;koh T[wo szr eodk oj/. go j[D fJ; dk e'Jh bkG BjhI. ejkts j? np

gSskJ/ fenk j's ip fuVhnk u[r rJh y/s.
Though he was fifty years old, yet he did not look to be more than forty. He

always wore a saffron coloured turban that added glamour to his tall

physique. Time had, no doubt, turned, some streaks of grey hair in his

long beard but his physique was yet straight like an arrow. His bodily

strength gave proof of itself as he walked swiftly in his loose clothes. He

was very much pleased to be addressed as "Singh Sahib". His language of

Punjabi mixed with Hindi made his accent really fascinating.

(ii) Gkt/I T[j gzikj ;kb dk ;h go d/yD ~ ukbhnK s'I tX dk BjhI ;h brdk.

T[j f;o s/ ;dk e/;oh ozr dh grVh pzBQdk ;h i' T[; d/ bzw-;bzw/ ;oho ~ uko

uzB bk fdzdh ;h. ;w/I Bkb T[; dh bzwh dkVh d/ e[M tkb }o{o ;c?d j' rJ/ ;B

go T[; dk ;oho sho tKr f;ZXk ;v"b ;h. nkgD/ fYb/ Ykb/ p;soK ftu id'I T[j

s/} fvzrK g[N e/ s[odk ;h sK T[; dh ;ohoe Fesh dk gqwkD fwb iKdk ;h. T[j

nkgD/ nkg ~ f;zx ;kfjp nytk e/ pj[s y[F j[zdk ;h. T[; dh fjzdh fwbh gzikph

GkFk, T[; d/ bfj}/ ~ ;u-w[u fdbeF pDk fdzdh ;h.
Riding on his horse the rebel leader was wandering about in the desert.

As the words uttered in your absence by false cunning friends raise heaps

of evil, similarly the dust raised by the hoofs of the horse made clouds of

dust. When the rebel-leader saw the sun shining behind the cloud of dust,

he thought, "As the sun is shining without any discrimination, similarly

justice would illumine the threshold of every poor and miserable person in

the world. The present needs of everyone would be fulfilled and the future

would not torment him at all."
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(iii) pkrh B/sk x'V/ s/ ;tko wko{Eb ftu GNe fojk ;h. fit/I M{m/ s/ wZeko d';sK

dhnK b{shnK, fgZm fgS/ p[okJhnK d/ gjkV yV/ eo fdzdhnK ;B fst/I jh x'V/ d/ y[oK

Bkb T[vdh fwZNh r[pko d/ pZdb pDkT[Idh iKdh ;h. id'I fJ; d/ r[pko d/ fgS/

uwedk ;{oi T[;dh B}oh fgnk sK pkrh B/sk B/ ;'funk fe @fit/I fJj X[Zg fpBk G/

d Gkt d/ uwe ojh j? fJt/I fJB;kB d[BhnK d/ jo rohp s/ d[yh fJB;kB d/ ftjV/

~ gqitZbs eo/rk. toswkB ftu jo fJe dhnK b'VK g{ohnK j'DrhnK ns/ GftZy

dk fceo T[; ~ edkfus BjhI ;skJ/rk.
Today, it is an age of computer. On the one hand, the computer runs

factories and on the other, it flies aeroplanes. It also selects competent

staff for jobs. Now it has started teaching arithmetic to children. The

scientists hope that in a few years, it would be possible with its help to

make an infallible weather forecast. Not only this, it has now started

forming models of the cells from which the human body is made. The fact

of the matter is that today nothing is possible in the field of science and

technology without the help of the computer.

(iv) toswkB nkgD/ nkg b/yk i'yk eoB tkbh wFhB dk :[Zr j?. T[j fJe gk;/

ekoykB/ ubKdh j? ns/ d{i/ gk;/ jtkJh ijk}. T[j B"eohnK bJh :'r ftneshnK

dh u'D th eodh j?. j[D sK fJ; B/ pZfunK ~ rfDs ftfrnkB gVQkT[Dk nkozG eo

fdZsk j?. ftfrnkBhnK ~ nk; j? fe e[M tfoQnK se fJ; dh wdd Bkb w";w dk

mhe gsk th br ;fenk eo/rk. fJj' jh BjhI j[D sK fJ; B/ T[BQK e'fFektK d/

Bw{B/ th pDkD/ F[o{ eo fdZs/ jB fiBQK s/ wkBth ;oho pfDnk j?. ;Zu sK fJj j?

fe nZi ftfrnkB s/ N?eBkb'ih y/so ftu wFhB s'I fpBQK r[}kok BjhI.
A man is lucky if he earns his living by doing the work that he likes. For

this purpose a person need not work blindly like greedy lawyers and doctors.

Some lawyers and doctors earn heaps of money and become respectable

and honorable from the wordly point of view. Due to the work they blindly

do, they lose interest in everything except their work. As a result of it,

their appearance becomes ghostly and their nature irritable.

(v) i/ wB[Zy nkgDh g;zd dk ezw eoe/ nkgDh o'}h ewk bt/ sK T[j GkrFkbh

j?. ni/jk eoB bJh pzd/ ~ bkbuh vkeNoK s/ tehbK tKr nzXk X[zd ezw eoB

dh b'V BjhI. eJh tehb s/ vkeNo Y/ok d/ Y/o o[gJ/ ewk b?Id/ jB ns/ d[fBnkth

fdqFNh s'I fJZisdko s/ ;BwkBs j' iKd/ jB. nzXk-X[zd ezw ekoB, T[BQK ~ nkgD/

ezw s'I fpBK fe;/ uh} ftu fdbu;gh BjhI ofjzdh. Bshi/ ti'I T[BQK dh ;{os gq/s-

o{gh s/ ;hos fyMh-fyMh j' iKdh j?.
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We talk of freedom, but political freedom cannot take us far, unless there

is econmoic freedom also. Indeed, freedom has no significance for a man

who is straving or for a country which is poor. The poor, whether nations

or individuals, have little place in this world. Therefore, we have to improve

our production in order to have sufficient wealth to be distributed by proper

economic planning so as to reach the millions, more especially the common

man. Then not only the millions will prosper, but the whole country becomes

rich, prosperous and strong. Many people have fears of all types of danger

and many talk loosely of conflicts with other countries. I hope there will

be no such conflict.

(vi) n;hI nk}kdh dh rZb eod/ jK b/feB id se nkofEe nk}kdh Bk j't/ sd

se okiBhfse nk}kdh ;k~ pj[s nZr/ BjhI fbik ;edh. tk;st ftu fJe G[Zy/

nkdwh bJh iK fJe pj[s rohp d/F bJh nk}kdh dk e'Jh wjZst BjhI ofjzdk.

rohpK d/ bJh, ukj/ T[j okFNo j't/ ukj/ ftnesh j't/, ;z;ko ftu irQk BjhI j?.

fJ; bJh ;k~ nkgDk T[sgkdB tXkT[Dk ukjhdk j?, fi; Bkb ;kv/ gk; ekch d"bs

j' ikt/ ns/ T[fus nkoEe :'iBk d[nkok n;hI T[; dh fJ; soQK tzv eohJ/ fe T[j

eo'VK ftneshnK se, yk; eoe/ ;ot ;XkoB wB[ZyK se, gj[zu ;e/. Bk e/tb eo'VK

ftnesh y[Fjkb j'Dr/ pbfe d/F d"bs tkbk, y[Fjkb ns/ FeshFkbh j't/rk. pj[s

b'e soQK soQK d/ ysfonK s'I vod/ jB ns/ nfij/ th b'e jB i' d{;o/ d/FK Bkb
bVkJh dh rZb bkgotkjh Bkb eo p?md/ jB. w?I nkFk eodk jK fe nfijh e'Jh

bVkJh BjhI j't/rh.
Because of the sacrifices of Shaheed Bhagat Singh and many other patriots,

India attained independence in 1947. Indeed freedom is a boon and slavery

is a curse. It is better to rule in hell than to serve in heaven. A bird does

not feel happy even in a golden cage. It wants to go into the free atmosphere,

breaking the bars of the cage. Not to talk of men even animals and birds

pine for freedom. How sweet is the word "freedom"!

(vii) Fjhd Grs f;zx s/ eJh j'o d/F GrsK dhnK e[opkBhnK d/ ;de/ Gkos B/

1947 ftu nk}kdh gqkgs ehsh. ;uw[u ;[szsosk fJe todkB j? ns/ r[bkwh fJe

;okg j?.  ;tor ftu r[bkwh eoB Bkb'I Boe ftu oki eoBk uzrk j?. fJe gzSh

;'B/ d/ fgzio/ ftu gq;zBsk nB[Gt BjhI eodk, fgzio/ dhnK ;hyK ~ s'V e/ ;[szso

tksktoD ftu ikDk ukj[zdk j?. wB[Zy sK eh gF{ th ;[szsosk bJh so;d/ jB.

;[szsosk fesBk fwZmk Fpd j?.
Gandhiji has gone, but his flaming spirit envelopes us all around. The

burden is upon us now and the immediate need is tht we should try to do

the utmost to fulfil this obligation. We have to hold together and fight the

terrible poison of communalism that has killed greatest man of our age.
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We must root this out, not any spirit of ill-will against misguided individuals

but in militant opposition to the evil it self. The evil has not ended with

Gandhiji's death. It is even more shameful that some people celebrated

the murder in various ways. Those who did so or feel that way, have

forfeited their right to be called Indians.

(viii) rKXh ih ub/ rJ/ jB gozs{ T[BQK dh gqitfbs nkswk ;kv/ uko'I soc ftnkge

j?. j[D ;kv/ T[go p'M fgnk j? ns/ ssekb fJj }o{oh j' frnk j? fe n;hI fJ;

p'M ~ nkgDh g{oh skes Bkb T[go T[mkJhJ/ ns/ fBGkJhJ/. ;k~ nkg; ftu fwb

i[b e/ ofjDk ns/ ;zgodkfJesk d/ T[; x'o ftF dk w[ekpbk eoBk j? fi; B/ ;kv/

:[r d/ ;G s'I tZv/ nkdwh dh ikB bJh. ;k~ fJ; ~ iVQ s'I T[ykVBk j?, e[okj/

gJ/ j'J/ b'eK d/ gqfs pdb/ dh GktBk s'I BjhI ;r'I fJ; p[okJh d/ j"I;b/ g{oD fto'X

dh GktBk Bkb. fJj p[okJh rKXh ih dh w"s Bkb ;wkgs BjhI j' rJh ns/ fJj

rZb j'o th FowBke j? fe e[M b'eK B/ fJ; jZfsnk T[Zs/ tZy tZy soQK Bkb y[FhnK

wBkJhnK. fiBQK B/ nfijk ehsk iKL i' fJ; soQK d/ ftuko oyd/ jB T[j Gkosh

efjbkT[D d/ jZedko BjhI.
We have passed through grave hardships. We have survived them but at a

terrible cost. The legacy that they left in tortured minds and stunted

souls will haunt us of a long time. Our travails are not over. Let us dedicate

ourselves to them in the spirit of free and disciplined men and women,

stout of heart and purpose. We have to start the work of healing and we

also have to build and create. The wounded body and spirit of India call

upon us to dedicate ourselves to this great task.

(ix) n;hI b'e efmB w[FebksK d/ ftu'I r[}o/ jK. n;hI T[jBK ~ gko eo ;e/

jK b/feB fJ;dk tZvk w[Zbk u[ekDk fgnk j?. ghVs wBk ns/ nto[X nkswktK d/

o{g ftu pj[s ;w/I se fJ; d/ gfoDkw ;kvk fgSk eoBr/. ;kv/ fJwfsjkB gk; BjhI

j'J/. nkU n;hI nkgD/ nkg ~ fJBQK d/ bJh nk}kd ns/ ;ziwh nkdwhnK s/

fJ;sohnK dh soQK fdb ns/ T[d/F ;w/s nofgs eohJ/. n;hI xktK ~ GoB dk ezw

F[o{ eoBk j? ns/ n;hI fBowkD ns/ ouBk eoBh j?. Gkos d/ }ywh ;oho ns/ nkswk

efj oj/ jB fe n;hI nkgD/ nkg ~ fJ; wjkB ekoi d/ bJh ;wofgs eohJ/.
There are many historical buildings in India. The Taj at Agra is the most

beautiful of them all. The Taj is a great tomb. About three hundred and

fifty years ago, Shah Jahan got it built in the memory of his wife, Mumtaz

Mahal. It is built of pure marble. Twenty thousand craftsmen worked for

twenty two years to build it. Three crores of rupees were spent on it. The

Taj is situated on the bank of Jamuna outside the city of Agra. Its beauty

is beyond description. People from distant places come to see it. It looks so
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beautiful in the moon-lit nights that the visitors can not disengage their

eyes from it. Travellers from foreign countries also come to see it and feel

delighted to have a look at it.

(x) Gkos ftu pj[s ;ko/ fJsjkf;e GtB jB. nkro/ dk ski wjZb T[BQK ftu

;G s'I tZX ;[zdo j?. ski fJZe wjkB wepok j?. brGr 350 ;kb j'J/ fJ; ~

Fkj ijkB B/ nkgDh gsBh w[wsk} wjZb dh :kd ftu pDtkfJnk ;h. fJj F[X

;zrwowo dk pfDnk j'fJnk j?. fJ; ~ pDkT[D bJh thj j}ko ekohroK ~ pkJh

toQ/ br/. fJ; s/ fszB eo'V o[gJ/ you j'J/. ski, nkrok Ffjo s'I pkjo iwBk

Bdh d/ feBko/ s/ j?. fJ; dh ;[zdosk dk toBD BjhI ehsk ik ;edk. b'e fJ;

~ d{o d{o s'I t/yD nkT[Id/ jB. uKdBhnK oksK ftu sK fJsBK ;[zdo brdk j? fe

t/yD tkb/ fJ; s'I nZy BjhI jNk ;ed/. pkjob/ d/FK s'I th :ksoh fJ; ~ t/yD

nkT[Id/ jB ns/ fJ; ~ d/y e/ pj[s y[F j[zd/ jB.
Munshi Prem Chand is the greatest novelist and story writer in Urdu and

Hindi. He could never anticipate that there would be such bitterness

between these two languages. Tears must be welling up in the eyes of late

Prem Chand on seeing these two languages oppose each other. However,

much we may respect him, our quarrels cannot wipe his tears. He got

nothing from the nation for whom he sacrificed everything. It is possible

that he became a great writer because of his difficulties. It is surprising

that he maintained cheerfulness despite innumerable difficulties.

(xi) w[BFh gq/w uzd T[od{ ns/ fjzdh d/ wjkB T[gfBnk;eko s/ ejkDheko j'J/ jB.

fJBQK d'BK p'bhnK ftu ed/ J/Bh d[FwBh j't/rh, T[jBK d/ fynkb ftu ed/ th BjhI

;h nkfJnk. d'BK p'bhnK ~ fJe d{;o/ dk fto'X eofdnK d/ye/ ;[ortk;h gq/w uzd

d/ B?DK ftu nZEo{ sK nkT[Id/ jh j'Dr/. n;hI T[BQK dk fezBk th ;fseko feT[I Bk

eohJ/, go ;kv/ MrV/ T[BQK d/ B?DK dk fJe th nZEo{ BjhI g{zM ;ed/. fi; d/F bJh

T[BQK ;G e[M e[opkB eo fdZsk, T[; tb'I T[BQK ~ e[M th BjhI fwfbnk. j' ;edk

j? fe fJBQK w[FebK B/ T[BQK ~ wjkB b/ye pDk fdZsk j't/. j?okBh dh rZb j? fe

nDfrDs emBkJhnK d/ pkti{d T[j gq;zB-fus ofjzd/ ;B.
Science is our friend as well as our enemy. It is a great blessing if we use

inventions properly, otherwise it is a curse. The nuclear power can improve

the economic conditions of the world quite a lot but the atomic bomb is

destructive. The havoc caused, during the last war by the atomic bomb in

the Japanese cities, Hiroshima and Nagasaki, is beyond description. After

the explosion of the atomic bomb, no building could be seen within the

range of twenty-five to thirty miles. There were ruins and corpses all

around. Later a number of diseases spread to which lacs of men, women

and children fell prey.
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(xii) ftfrnkB ;kvk d';s th j? s/ d[FwD th. i/eo fJ; d/ nftFekoK dk T[fus

gq:'r j't/ sK todkB j? BjhI sK ;okg. nD{ Fesh Bkb ;z;ko dh nkofEe dFk

ekch uzrh j' ;edh j?. go gqwkD{ pzp ftBkFekoh j?. fgSbh izr ftu i' spkjh

gqwkD{ pzp B/ ikgkB d/ FfjoK jho'Fhwk s/ Bkrk;keh ftu ehsh T[j fpnkB BjhI ehsh

ik ;edh. gqwkD{ pzp d/ ft;c'N wro'I gzMh shj whb se e'Jh fJwkos fdykJh BjhI

;h fdzdh. whbK se yzvo jh yzvo ;B. uko'I gk;hI bkFK ;B. wro'I eJh phwkohnK

c?b rJhnK ns/ bZyK g[oF fJ;sohnK s/ pZu/ phwkohnK dk fFeko j' rJ/.
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